
AGENDA 
DAYTON HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMMITTEE 

DATE: WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022   
PLACE: REMOTE VIA ZOOM  https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88298895889 
TIME: 6:30 PM 

  ITEM    DESCRIPTION    PAGE # 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Meeting on June 16, 2021 1 - 2 

D. HISTORIC PROPERTY REQUEST FOR CHANGE APPLICATION

HIST 2022-01 Application and narrative 3 – 4 

Nomination materials and photographs 5 - 14 

Photographs from Applicant 15 - 30 

Approval criteria 31 - 33 

E. OTHER BUSINESS

CLG Grant Update

F. ADJOURN

Posted:  11/02/1 Posted: 02/09/2022 
      Cyndi Park, Library Director 

If you have a disability and require a reasonable accommodation to fully participate in this meeting, 
please contact the City of Dayton at least 32 working hours (four days) before the meeting via email at 

cityofdayton@ci.dayton.or.us or telephone 503-864-2221 to discuss your accessibility needs. 

NEXT MEETING DATE 
Wednesday, March 16, 2022 

This time is reserved for questions or comments from persons in the audience on any topic. 



Dayton Historic Preservation Committee 

Minutes of Meeting of June 16, 2021 

Members present: 

Members absent: 

Staff:  

Judy Gerrard, Kim Courtin, and Kelly Haverkate

Dave Hargett, Wayne Herring 

Cyndi Park, Library Director 

The meeting was opened by Chair Judy Gerrard at 6:34 p.m. Kelly Haverkate moved to 

approve the minutes of the February 10, 2021 meeting, with the stipulation that the names 

of the applicants and the property address of the Application for Historic Alteration be 

included. Kim Courtin seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  

Appearance of Interested Citizens 

None in attendance. 

CLG Grant 

Cyndi updated the committee on the quote for ground-penetrating radar. The committee 

recommended scheduling around the availability of the vendor to fit us in. The group 

agreed that the yellow box drawn by the vendor was sufficient for exploration.  

Sea Reach quotes for wayfinding signs that include stories of historically 

underrepresented persons buried in Brookside. Chair Gerrard questioned the pricing 

and installation of the various options quoted. The upright signs would provide more 

surface to work with, but the cantilevered signs would be easier to read – especially as 

maps. Discussion continued about the merits and challenges with each type of sign, 

and then shifted to other items that were approved for grant funding. Other approved 

items included a brochure about the cemetery and hosting a monument cleaning 

workshop or event. Everyone is encouraged to research further and track their volunteer 

hours. 

Brookside Update 

The Sally Donovan Award came with a stipend of $500. The City contacted Dave 

Pinyerd, and he recommended some repairs that could be made to a few more 

monuments in Brookside. The Committee agreed with his proposal, and the repairs will 

be scheduled.  

Other Business 

1



The Committee inquired about the applicants from the last meeting, so far they have not 

returned to the City to apply for any permits. 

Adjournment 

Chairperson Gerard adjourned the meeting at 7:08 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cyndi Park 

Library Director 

2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



   
7.2.112.07 Exterior Alteration And New Construction

A. City Manager or Planning Commission Approval. No person shall alter the exterior of an historic 
resource on the National Register of Historic Places, or a Designated Landmark in the Historical 
Property Overlay Zone or in an historic district nor shall any new building or structure be 
constructed on a property on the National Register of Historic Places, or in the  Historical 
Property Overlay Zone or in an historic district  where the City Manager determines it is minor 
unless approved by the City Manager. No person shall alter the exterior of an historic resource
on the National Register of Historic Places, or a Designated Landmark in the Historical Property 
Overlay Zone or in  an historic district nor shall any new building or structure be constructed on a
property on the National Register of Historic Places, or on a Designated Landmark site in the 
Historical Property Overlay Zone or in an historic district where the City Manager refers the 
application to the Planning Commission unless approved by the Planning Commission.  A 
Building Permit may be required for certain exterior alterations and new construction.  In addition, 
no major public improvements shall be made on a property on the National Register of Historic 
Places, or on a Designated Landmark site or in an historic district unless approved by the 
Planning Commission.  

B. Application Process. An application for the exterior alteration of a Designated Landmark or new 
construction on property on the National Register of Historic Places, or in the Historical Property 
Overlay Zone, or in an historic district shall be filed on a form provided by the City. The following 
information shall be required in an application:

1. The applicant's name and address, and the applicant's signature;

2. The owner's name and address, and evidence of legal and recorded ownership of the 
subject property and the owner's signature;

3. Name of the person(s), title, or relationship to the project who will verify that the exterior 
alteration or new construction, if approved, has been completed according to the City’s 
requirements;

4. A written description and explanation of the proposed exterior alteration or new 
construction;

5. A site plan, drawn to scale, indicating the location or proposed location of structures on 
the subject property, the dimensions of the structures and the distances from the 
structures to the property lines;

6. Photographs, other pictorial and schematics information, sample materials and colors, if 
available, to represent the proposed exterior alterations or new construction;

7. Written explanation of the proposed exterior alteration or new construction in comparison 
with the City’s 1993 Advisory Guidelines and the US Secretary of Interior Guidelines. (An 
on-line copy of the latter document is available for review at the following site: 
(www.nps.gov/history/hps/tps/standguide/index.htm).  At the site, click on the tab 
"Education and Training," then click on "Online Training," then click on "Illustrated 
Rehabilitation Guidelines."

8. Any other information deemed necessary by the City Manager to address the approval
criteria.

C. Historic Preservation Committee (HPC): After the application is deemed complete, the Historic 
Preservation Committee shall review the application at a regularly scheduled meeting or at a 
special meeting.  The Historic Preservation Committee shall provide a written recommendation 

31

https://dayton.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=7.2.112.07_Exterior_Alteration_And_New_Construction
http://www.nps.gov/history/hps/tps/standguide/index.htm


based on the approval criteria to the City Manager and the Planning Commission.. The Historic 
Preservation Committee serves in an advisory capacity.

D. City Manager Decision. Where the City Manager determines the application meets at least one of 
the following criteria 1, 2 or 3, for a minor exterior alteration or new construction, the City Manger 
may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application.  The City manager shall consider 
the Historic Preservation Committee's recommendation.

1. No change in the exterior appearance or material of the Designated Landmark as it exists 
or the proposed work is building maintenance; or

2. The proposed exterior alteration or new construction duplicates or restores the affected 
exterior features and materials as determined from historic photographs, original building 
plans, or other evidence of original features or materials; or

3. The exterior alteration is on a side or rear elevation of a Designated Landmark or is not 
visible from public rights-of-way, or the new construction is not visible from public rights-
of-way.

E. Planning Commission Action. Where the City Manager determines the application is not a minor 
exterior alteration or is not a minor new construction, the City Manager shall forward the 
application and the Historic Preservation Committee's recommendation to the Planning 
Commission. The Planning Commission shall consider the Historic Preservation Committee's 
recommendation.  The Planning Commission, after notice and public hearing held in accordance 
with provisions in DMC 7.3.2 (Administrative Procedures), shall approve, approve with conditions 
or deny the application.  

F. Decision Criteria. To approve the application for exterior alteration of a Designated Landmark or 
new construction on property on the National Register of Historic Places, or in the Historical 
Property Overlay Zone, or in an historic district the Planning Commission shall consider the 
following criteria:

1. The proposed new use is similar to the historical use of the property or the proposed new 
use requires minimal change to the Designated Landmark's or its property's distinctive, 
materials, features, spaces, and spatial relationships.

2. Historic character of the property is retained and preserved. The relocation of distinctive 
materials or alterations of exterior features, spaces, and spatial relationships that 
characterize the property shall be avoided.

3. Use of the property recognizes the physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes 
that create a false sense of historic development, such as adding conjectural features or 
elements from other historic properties, shall not be undertaken.

4. Changes acquiring historic significance in their own right are retained and preserved.

5. Alterations preserve distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques 
or examples of craftsmanship that characterize the property.

6. Historic features are repaired versus replaced. Where the severity of deterioration 
requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in 
design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features 
shall be substantiated by documentary and physical evidence.

7. Use of chemical and physical treatments, if appropriate, are undertaken by the gentlest 
means possible. Treatments that cause damage to historic materials shall not be used.

8. Alteration, including new additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction, do 
not destroy historic materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the 
property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible with 32



the historic materials, features, size, scale, and proportions, and massing to protect the 
integrity of the property and environment

9. New additions and adjacent or related new construction on the subject property are 
undertaken in such a manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and 
integrity of the historic property and its environment are unimpaired.

10. Consider design guidelines such as applicable sections of the City’s 1993 Advisory 
Guidelines or the U.S. Secretary of Interior’s Standards; 
(www.nps.gov/history/hps/tps/standguide/index.htm). 

G. Repair and Maintenance Provisions. No provision of DMC 7.2.112 shall be construed to prevent 
the ordinary maintenance or repair of a Designated Landmark including, but not limited to an 
exterior architectural feature which does not involve a change in design, material or appearance 
of such feature. The City Manager shall determine if the proposed activity is required for the 
public safety due to an unsafe or dangerous condition.

H. Building Code Leniency. Property owners may request the City Building Official or designee 
grant leniency for non-conforming exterior alterations, repairs, additions, and changes of 
occupancy for existing Designated Landmark structures in accordance with the current Oregon 
Structural Specialty Code, or Oregon Residential Specialty Code. In accordance with the statute, 
the Building Official or designee may seek guidance from the Oregon State Historic Preservation 
Office in the application of this provision.

HISTORY 
Amended by Ord. 645 on 2/12/2020 

  

33

http://www.nps.gov/history/hps/tps/standguide/index.htm
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/dayton/ordinances/documents/1581526868_O%202020-645%20Amends%20DMC%20Chapter%207%20-%20Adjacent%20to%20Historic%20Properties.pdf

	June 16 2021 Minutes.pdf
	Criteria for Approval.pdf
	20220208155153.pdf



